
Regular Meeting 
November 17-18, 2022

1st Revised

http://www.wmc.wa.gov/
https://www.facebook.com/WAMedCommission
https://twitter.com/WAMedCommission


    Approved 11/15/19  Updated: November 9, 2022 

 

 

 

 

Dates Location Meeting Type 

January 13-14 
Virtual Meeting 

Regular Meeting 
 

March 3-4 
Virtual Meeting 

Regular Meeting 
 

April 14-15 Virtual Options Available  
Tumwater, WA 

Regular Meeting 
 

May 26-27 
Virtual Meeting 

Regular Meeting 
 

July 14-15 Virtual options available for open 
sessions for the public  

Tumwater, WA 

Regular Meeting 
 

August 25-26 Virtual options available for open 
sessions for the public  

Tumwater, WA 

Regular Meeting 
 

October 6 
Tentative: Virtual Meeting 

Closed Session:  
Case Reviews 

November 17-18 Virtual options available for open 
sessions for the public  

Capitol Event Center (ESD 113) 
6005 Tyee Drive SW, Tumwater, WA 

Regular Meeting 
 

 

Association Meetings 
Association Dates Location 
Federation of State Medical Boards          
   (FSMB) Annual Conference 

April 28-30, 2022 New Orleans, LA 

WAPA Spring Conference April 22-25, 2022 Seattle, WA 
WSMA Annual Meeting October 1-2, 2022 Spokane, WA 
WAPA Fall Conference October 27-29, 2022 Cle Elum, WA 

 

Other Meetings 
Program Dates Location 
Council on Licensure, Enforcement &  
   Regulation (CLEAR) Winter 
Symposium 

January 5, 2022 Virtual Event 

CLEAR Annual Conference September 14-17, 2022 Louisville, KY 
FSMB Board Attorneys Workshop November 3-4, 2022 TBD 

 

2022 Meeting Schedule 



    Approved November 13, 2020  Updated: November 9, 2022 

 

 

 

 

Dates Location Meeting Type 

January 12-13 Virtual options available for open 
sessions for the public  

Capitol Event Center (ESD 113) 
6005 Tyee Drive SW, Tumwater, WA 

Regular Meeting 
 

March 2-3 Virtual options available for open 
sessions for the public  

Capitol Event Center (ESD 113) 
6005 Tyee Drive SW, Tumwater, WA 

Regular Meeting 
 

April 13-14 Virtual options available for open 
sessions for the public  

Capitol Event Center (ESD 113) 
6005 Tyee Drive SW, Tumwater, WA 

Regular Meeting 
 

May 25-26 
Virtual via GoToWebinar 

Regular Meeting 
 

July 13-14 Virtual options available for open 
sessions for the public  

Capitol Event Center (ESD 113) 
6005 Tyee Drive SW, Tumwater, WA 

Regular Meeting 
 

August 24-25 Virtual options available for open 
sessions for the public  

Capitol Event Center (ESD 113) 
6005 Tyee Drive SW, Tumwater, WA 

Regular Meeting 
 

October 5-6 
Tumwater, WA 

Tentative:  
Case Reviews 

Commissioner Retreat 

November 16-17 Virtual options available for open 
sessions for the public  

Capitol Event Center (ESD 113) 
6005 Tyee Drive SW, Tumwater, WA 

Regular Meeting 
 

 

Association Meetings 
Association Dates Location 
Federation of State Medical Boards          
   (FSMB) Annual Conference 

May 4-6, 2023 Minneapolis, MN 

WAPA Spring Conference TBA TBA 
WSMA Annual Meeting September 23-24, 2023 Bellevue, WA 
WAPA Fall Conference TBA TBA 

 

 

 

 

2023 Meeting Schedule 



    Approved November 13, 2020  Updated: November 9, 2022 

 

Other Meetings 
Program Dates Location 
Council on Licensure, Enforcement &  
   Regulation (CLEAR) Winter 
Symposium 

January 11, 2023 Savannah, GA 

CLEAR Annual Conference September 27-30, 2023 Salt Lake City, UT 
FSMB Board Attorneys Workshop TBA TBA 

  



    Approved November 13, 2020  Updated: November 9, 2022 

                                         

 

 

 

Dates Location Meeting Type 

January 11-12 
TBD 

Regular Meeting 
 

March 7-8 
TBD 

Regular Meeting 
 

April 18-19 
TBD 

Regular Meeting 
 

May 23-24 
TBD 

Regular Meeting 
 

July 11-12 
TBD 

Regular Meeting 
 

August 22-23 
TBD 

Regular Meeting 
 

October 3-5 
TBD 

Educational Conference 
 

November 21-22 
TBD 

Regular Meeting 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

2024 Meeting Schedule 



PO Box 47866 | Olympia, Washington 98504-7866 | Medical.Commission@wmc.wa.gov | WMC.wa.gov 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Hearing Date Respondent Case No. Location 
November 2022  

NO HEARINGS SCHEDULED THIS MONTH  
December 2022  

NO HEARINGS SCHEDULED THIS MONTH 
 

 
January 2023  

January 6 Chester C. Hu, MD M2022-359 TBD  

January 19 
through 

January 20 
Rajinder Julta, MD M2022-438 TBD  

February 2023   

February 6 Paul Thomas, MD M2021-378 TBD  

February 27  
through  
March 1 

Eric R. Shibley, MD M2018-443 TBD  

March 2023   

March 16 
through 
March 17 

Robert Thompson, MD M2021-553 TBD  

April 2023   

April 3 
through 
April 7 

Richard Wilkinson, MD M2022-196 TBD  

 
 
 

FORMAL HEARING SCHEDULE 

mailto:Medical.Commission@wmc.wa.gov
http://www.wmc.wa.gov/


November 17-18, 2022 Revised 11/15/2022 Agenda Page 1 of 3 

PO Box 47866 | Olympia, Washington 98504-7866 | Medical.Commission@wmc.wa.gov | WMC.wa.gov 

 
 
 
 

In accordance with the Open Public Meetings Act, this meeting notice was sent to individuals requesting notification of the 
Department of Health, Washington Medical Commission (WMC) meetings. This agenda is subject to change. The Policy 

Committee Meeting will begin at 4:00 pm on November 17, 2022 until all agenda items are complete. The WMC will take public 
comment at the Policy Committee Meeting. The Business Meeting will begin at 8:00 am on November 18, 2022 until all agenda 
items are complete. The WMC will take public comment at the Business Meeting. To request this document in another format, 
call 1-800-525-0127. Deaf or hard of hearing customers, please call 711 (Washington Relay) or email civil.rights@doh.wa.gov. 

The Washington Medical Commission (WMC) is providing a virtual option for members of the public for several 
of the open sessions in this agenda. This is to promote social distancing and the safety of the citizens of 

Washington State. Registration links can be found below.  

Capital Event Center (ESD 113), 6005 Tyee Drive SW, Tumwater, WA 98512 

Time Thursday – November 17, 2022  
Closed Sessions 

8:00 am 
8:00 am 

Case Reviews – Panel A  
Case Reviews – Panel B 

Pacific 
Grays Harbor 

Open Session 

12:30 pm Lunch & Learn Thurston 
To attend virtually, please register at: https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/8399119173284041487  

After registering, you will receive an email containing a link that is unique to you to join the webinar. 

Legislation 101 
Micah Matthews, Deputy Executive Director 

Closed Sessions 

1:30 pm 
1:30 pm 

Case Reviews – Panel A  
Case Reviews – Panel B 

 

Open Session 

4:00 pm Policy Committee Meeting Grays Harbor 

To attend virtually, register at: https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/2039229457902073360  
After registering, you will receive an email containing a link that is unique to you to join the webinar. 

Agenda Items Presented By: Page(s)  
DOH Document: Medical Marijuana Authorization Guidelines 
Routine review, discussion, and possible revisions. 

Mike Farrell 96-101 

Guidance Document: Reentry to Practice for Suspended Licenses 
Routine review, discussion, and possible revisions to guidance document. 

Mike Farrell 102-103 

Guidance Document: Reentry to Practice 
Routine review, discussion, and possible revisions to guidance document. 

Mike Farrell 104-106 

Proposed Policy: Clinical Experience Assessment (IMG) 
Review and possible revisions to proposed policy and assessment 
document. 

Micah Matthews 107-112 

 
 

Commission Meeting Agenda 
November 17-18, 2022 – 1st Revised 

 

http://www.wmc.wa.gov/
mailto:civil.rights@doh.wa.gov
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/8399119173284041487
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/register/2039229457902073360


November 17-18, 2022 Revised 11/15/2022 Agenda Page 2 of 3 

PO Box 47866 | Olympia, Washington 98504-7866 | Medical.Commission@wmc.wa.gov | WMC.wa.gov 

 

Time Friday – November 18, 2022  
Open Session 

8:00 am Business Meeting Thurston 

To attend virtually, register for this meeting at: https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/rt/5185074061969207310  
After registering, you will receive an email containing a link that is unique to you to join the webinar. 

1.0 Chair Calls the Meeting to Order 

2.0 Public Comment 
The public will have an opportunity to provide comments. If you would like to comment during 
this time, please limit your comments to two minutes. Please identify yourself and who you 
represent, if applicable, when the Chair opens the floor for public comment. 

3.0 Chair Report 

4.0 Consent Agenda 

 Items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine agency matters 
and will be approved by a single motion without separate discussion. If 
separate discussion is desired, that item will be removed from the Consent 
Agenda and placed on the regular Business Agenda. 

Action 
 

 4.1 Minutes – Approval of the August 26, 2022 Business Meeting minutes. Pages 10-13 

 4.2 Agenda – Approval of the November 18, 2022 Business Meeting agenda. Pages 7-9 

5.0 Old Business  
 5.1 Committee/Workgroup Reports 

The Chair will call for reports from the Commission’s committees and 
workgroups. Written reports begin on page 14. 

See page 15 for a list of committees and workgroups. 

Update 
 
 
 

 5.2 Rulemaking Activities 
Rules Progress Report provided on page 16. In addition to the written 
report, Amelia Boyd, Program Manager, will present the following: 

Update/Action 
 

  • Rules petitions from Thomas M. Bertsch. Commissioners must 
review and decide whether to pursue rulemaking based on the 
content of each petition.  

 

  o Petition 1, received October 19, 2022 Pages 17-63 

  o Petitions 2, received October 25, 2022 Pages 64-87 

  o Petition 3, received October 31, 2022 Pages 88-95 

  • Request to rescind medical records rules initiation approval.  

  • Request to rescind interpretive statements:  

o Establishing Approval Criteria for Defining Appropriate 
Medical Practices for IMG Nomination, INS2022-02 

o Requiring the Filing of a Practice Agreement Before 
Beginning to Practice Under an IMG Limited License, 
INS2021-01  

These two interpretive statements have been 
incorporated as part of the recently adopted 

 

http://www.wmc.wa.gov/
https://attendee.gotowebinar.com/rt/5185074061969207310
https://wmc.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/WMC%20Establishing%20Approval%20Criteria%20for%20Defining%20Appropriate%20Medical%20Practice%20for%20IMG%20license_INS2022_filed%204%2019%2022.pdf
https://wmc.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/Notice%20of%20Adoption%20and%20Interpretive%20Statement%20Jan%202022.pdf


November 17-18, 2022 Revised 11/15/2022 Agenda Page 3 of 3 

PO Box 47866 | Olympia, Washington 98504-7866 | Medical.Commission@wmc.wa.gov | WMC.wa.gov 

rules regarding requirements for International 
Medical Graduates to apply for the new Limited 
Physician and Surgeon Clinical Experience 
License. 

o Exempting Patients in Nursing Homes and Long-Term 
Acute Care Hospitals from the Opioid Prescribing Rules, 
INS2019-03 – This interpretive statement has been 
incorporated as part of the recently adopted rules 
regarding opioid prescribing patient exemptions.  

  • Request to initiate rulemaking regarding SB 5229 – Concerning 
health equity continuing education for health care professionals 

 

 5.3 Open Public Meetings Act 
Heather Carter, AAG, will provide training regarding the Open Public Meetings Act, 
chapter 42.30 RCW.  

6.0 Policy Committee Report 

 Christine Blake, Public Member, Chair, will report on items discussed at the 
Policy Committee meeting held on November 17, 2022. See the Policy 
Committee agenda on page 1 of this agenda for the list of items to be 
presented. 

Report/Action 
Begins on 
page 96 

7.0 Member Reports 
The Chair will call for reports from Commission members. 

 

8.0 Staff Member Reports 
The Chair will call for further reports from staff.  

Written 
reports  

Pages 113-122 

9.0 AAG Report 
Heather Carter, AAG, may provide a report. 

 

10.0 Adjournment of Business Meeting  

Open Sessions 
9:45 am Personal Appearances – Panel A  Page 123 Pacific 

9:45 am Personal Appearances – Panel B  Page 124 Grays Harbor 

Closed Session 

Noon to 1:00 pm Lunch Break  

Open Sessions 

1:00 pm Personal Appearances – Panel A Page 123 Pacific 

1:00 pm Personal Appearances – Panel B Page 124 Grays Harbor 

 

http://www.wmc.wa.gov/
https://wmc.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/documents/Exempting%20Patients%20in%20Nursing%20Homes%20and%20LTACs%20from%20Opioid%20Rules.pdf
https://app.leg.wa.gov/billsummary?BillNumber=5229&Year=2021
https://app.leg.wa.gov/rcw/default.aspx?cite=42.30


 

August 26, 2022   Page 1 of 4 

PO Box 47866 | Olympia, Washington 98504-7866 | Medical.Commission@wmc.wa.gov | WMC.wa.gov 

 
 
 
 
 

Virtual Meeting via GoToWebinar – Link to recording: https://youtu.be/wkK-zQsB_w0  

Commission Members 
Mabel Bongmba, MD – Absent  April Jaeger, MD – Absent  
Michael Bailey, Public Member – Absent Ed Lopez, PA-C 
Christine Blake, Public Member Sarah Lyle, MD – Absent 
Toni Borlas, Public Member – Absent  Terry Murphy, MD, Vice Chair 
Po-Shen Chang, MD Elisha Mvundura, MD 
Jimmy Chung, MD, Chair Robert Pullen, Public Member 
Diana Currie, MD – Absent Scott Rodgers, JD, Public Member 
Arlene Dorrough, PA-C Claire Trescott, MD – Absent 
Anjali D’Souza, MD Richard Wohns, MD – Absent  
Karen Domino, MD, Chair Elect Yanling Yu, PhD, Public Member 
Harlan Gallinger, MD   

WMC Staff 
Colleen Balatbat, Staff Attorney Rick Glein, Director of Legal Services 
Morgan Barrett, Director of Compliance George Heye, MD, Medical Consultant 
Amelia Boyd, Program Manager Mike Hively, Director of Operations & Informatics 
Kayla Bryson, Executive Assistant Ken Imes, Information Liaison 
Jimi Bush, Director of Quality & Engagement Kyle Karinen, Staff Attorney 
Adam Calica, Chief Investigator Mike Kramer, Compliance Officer 
Marisa Courtney, Licensing Supervisor Pam Kohlmeier, MD, JD, Attorney 
Melanie de Leon, Executive Director Fatima Mirza, Program Case Manager 
Joel DeFazio, Staff Attorney Micah Matthews, Deputy Executive Director 
Kelly Elder, Staff Attorney Trisha Wolf, Staff Attorney 
Mike Farrell, Policy Development Manager Gordon Wright, Staff Attorney 

Others in Attendance 
Chris Bundy, MD, Executive Medical Director, 
Washington Physicians Health Program 

Heather Carter, Assistant Attorney General 

 

1.0 Call to Order 

Jimmy Chung, MD, Chair, called the meeting of the Washington Medical Commission (WMC) to 
order at 8:02 a.m. on August 26, 2022. 

2.0 Public Comment 
Chris Bundy, MD, Executive Medical Director, Washington Physicians Health Program (WPHP), 
introduced himself. He spoke about the partnership between the WMC and WPHP.  

3.0 Chair Report 
Jimmy Chung, MD, Chair, welcomed Dr. Elisha Mvundura and Dr. Anjali D’Souza. He then asked 
each of them to introduce themselves and provide a little of their background.  

Business Meeting Minutes 
August 26, 2022 

 

http://www.wmc.wa.gov/
https://youtu.be/wkK-zQsB_w0


 

August 26, 2022   Page 2 of 4 

PO Box 47866 | Olympia, Washington 98504-7866 | Medical.Commission@wmc.wa.gov | WMC.wa.gov 

4.0 Consent Agenda 
The Consent Agenda contained the following items for approval: 

4.1 Minutes from the July 15, 2022 Business Meeting 
4.2 Agenda for August 26, 2022. 

Motion: The Chair entertained a motion to approve the Consent Agenda. The 
motion was seconded and approved unanimously. 

5.0 Rules Hearing 
International Medical Graduates – Senate Bill 6551 – WSR #22-15-039 New Limited Physician 
and Surgeon Clinical Experience License.  

The revised proposed language was adopted by the Commissioners during this hearing. For more 
information about the WMC’s rules in progress, please visit the Rulemaking page on the website by 
clicking here.  

6.0 New Business 

 6.1 Reproductive Rights Position Statement  
The draft statement was discussed by the panel of Commissioners. Dr. Chung suggested 
a workgroup be created to work on the language in the document.  

Motion: The Chair entertained a motion to table the topic. The motion was 
seconded and approved unanimously. 

7.0 Old Business 

 7.1 Committee/Workgroup Reports 
These reports were provided in writing and included in the meeting packet. There were no 
additional reports.    

 7.2 Rulemaking Activities 
The rulemaking progress report was provided in the meeting packet. In addition to the 
written report, Amelia Boyd, Program Manager, presented the following:  

  • Request to rescind Emergency Licensing rules initiation approval.  
Ms. Boyd stated in 2020 the Commissioners approved initiating emergency 
rulemaking related to allopathic physician and physician assistant licensing in 
response to the COVID-19 pandemic. Also in 2020, the Governor instituted a 
proclamation regarding licensing for these professions that essentially had the 
same intent as the emergency rulemaking. Ms. Boyd went on to say that the 
proclamation will be lifted as of October 27, 2022, and that there is no longer a 
need for this rulemaking. Ms. Boyd asked that the Commissioners vote to rescind 
their previous approval to initiate emergency rulemaking on this subject.  

Motion: The Chair entertained a motion to rescind the approval to initiate 
emergency rulemaking regarding licensing. The motion was seconded and 
approved unanimously. 

  • Informational: ARNP Scope of Practice Rules 
Ms. Boyd stated the Nursing Care Quality Assurance Commission (NCQAC) is 
required to provide draft language related to ARNP scope of practice to the WMC 

http://www.wmc.wa.gov/
https://wmc.wa.gov/policies-rules/rules-and-regulations-progress


 

August 26, 2022   Page 3 of 4 

PO Box 47866 | Olympia, Washington 98504-7866 | Medical.Commission@wmc.wa.gov | WMC.wa.gov 

for review and comment. She stated the draft language was included in the packet 
and if a Commissioner has a question or a comment, the contact information for 
NCQAC was also included in the packet.  

 7.3 Lists & Labels Request 
The following lists and labels request was discussed for possible approval or denial. 
Approval or denial of this request is based on whether the entity meets the requirements 
of a “professional association” or an “educational organization” as noted on the 
application (RCW 42.56.070(9)).  

• Washington Physicians Health Program 

Motion: The Chair entertained a motion approve the request. The motion was 
seconded and approved unanimously.  

 7.4 Open Public Meetings Act 
This item was deferred to the November 18, 2022, Business meeting.  

8.0 Policy Committee Report 

 Christine Blake, Public Member, Policy Committee Chair, reported on the items discussed at the 
Policy Committee meeting held on August 25, 2022: 

Guidance Document: Overlapping & Simultaneous Elective Surgeries 
Ms. Blake stated the Committee reviewed the changes to the document that had been made 
since the July 15, 2022, meeting and that the Committee recommended approving the document 
as revised and provided in the meeting packet.  

Procedure: Personal Appearances 
Ms. Blake stated that this document is being presented as part of the WMC’s established four-
year review schedule. She stated the Committee recommended reaffirming the document. The 
Commissioners discussed a minor edit to the document. 

Motion: The Committee Chair entertained a motion to approve the edit. The motion was 
approved unanimously.  

Delegation of Final Decision-Making to Health Law Judge 
Ms. Blake asked Mike Farrell, Policy Development Manager, to report on this document. Mr. 
Farrell explained the purpose of the document. He then explained there was one error on the 
document which was provided in the meeting packet. Ms. Blake stated that the Committee 
recommended approving the amended document as explained by Mr. Farrell.  

Motion: The Chair entertained a motion to approve the Committee report as presented. The 

motion was approved unanimously.  

9.0 Member Reports  

No Member reports were provided.  

10.0 Staff Reports 

The reports below are in addition to the written reports that were included in the meeting 
packet.  

Micah Matthews, Deputy Executive Director, provided an update on the State Auditor’s audit of 

http://www.wmc.wa.gov/


 

August 26, 2022   Page 4 of 4 

PO Box 47866 | Olympia, Washington 98504-7866 | Medical.Commission@wmc.wa.gov | WMC.wa.gov 

the Prescription Monitoring Program. He then reported on the proclamations being rescinded in 
October by Governor Inslee. One of which is Proclamation 20-32 that affects several health 
professions, including allopathic physicians (MDs) and physician assistants (PAs). Mr. Matthews 
explained the WMC’s plan to educate MDs and PAs on this item. More information about this 
item can be found on the WMC’s website by clicking here.  

Mr. Matthews also introduced a new staff member, Fatima Mirza, who is the Program Case 
Manager.  

11.0 AAG Report 

Heather Carter, AAG, had nothing to report.    

12.0 Adjournment 

The Chair called the meeting adjourned at 9:11 am.  

 
Submitted by 

 
 

Amelia Boyd, Program Manager  
 

 

Jimmy Chung, MD, Chair 
Washington Medical Commission 

 
Approved November 18, 2022 

 
To request this document in another format, call 1-800-525-0127. Deaf or hard of hearing customers, 
please call 711 (Washington Relay) or email civil.rights@doh.wa.gov. 

http://www.wmc.wa.gov/
https://wmc.wa.gov/inslee-announces-pending-rescission-proclamation-20-32-waivers-ending-and-cme-requirements-being
mailto:civil.rights@doh.wa.gov


 

360-236-2750   |   PO Box 47866   |   Olympia, Washington 98504-7866   |   Medical.Commission@wmc.wa.gov 

www.WMC.wa.gov 

Committee/Workgroup Reports:  
November 2022  

 

Healthcare Disparities Workgroup – Chair: Dr. Currie 
Staff: Melanie de Leon 

Workgroup members working on information for proposed Commission healthcare disparity 

calendar. 

 
 
 

Reduction of Medical Errors Workgroup – Chair: Dr. Chung 
Staff: Mike Farrell 

The workgroup, now called the High Reliability workgroup, last met in August and presented 

its work to the policy committee. The workgroup will schedule a meeting soon. 



 

Page 1 of 1  Updated: November 15, 2022 
 

Committees & Workgroups 

Executive Committee 

Chair: Dr. Chung 

Chair Elect: Dr. Domino 

Vice Chair: Dr. Murphy 

Policy Chair: Christine Blake, PM 

Immediate Past Chair: John Maldon, PM 

Melanie de Leon 

Micah Matthews 

Heather Carter, AAG 
 

Policy Committee 

Christine Blake, PM, Chair (B) 

Dr. Domino (B) 

Dr. Trescott (B) 

Scott Rodgers, PM (A) 

Ed Lopez, PA-C (B) 

Heather Carter, AAG 

Melanie de Leon 

Mike Farrell 

Amelia Boyd 
 

Newsletter Editorial Board 

Dr. Currie 

Dr. Chung 

Dr. Wohns 

Jimi Bush, Managing Editor 

Micah Matthews 
 

Legislative Subcommittee 

Dr. Chung, Chair 

John Maldon, PM. Pro Tem Commissioner  

Christine Blake, PM 

Dr. Wohns 

Melanie de Leon 

Micah Matthews 
 

Healthcare Disparities Workgroup 

Dr. Currie, Chair 

Dr. Browne 

Dr. Jaeger 

Christine Blake, PM 

Melanie de Leon 

Panel L 

Dr. Chung, Chair 

Christine Blake, PM  

Dr. Browne  

Dr. Chung 

Arlene Dorrough, PA-C 

John Maldon, PM, Pro Tem 

Dr. Roberts, Pro Tem 

Dr. Trescott 

Dr. Barrett, Medical Consultant 

Marisa Courtney, Licensing Supervisor 

Pam Kohlmeier, MD, JD, Staff Attorney 

Micah Matthews 
 

Finance Workgroup 

Dr. Chung, WMC Chair, Workgroup Chair 

Dr. Domino, WMC Chair Elect 

Melanie de Leon 

Micah Matthews 

Jimi Bush 
 

High Reliability Workgroup 

Dr. Domino, Chair 

John Maldon, PM 

Dr. Roberts 

Dr. Chung 

Dr. Jaeger 

Christine Blake, PM 

Scott Rodgers, PM 

Melanie de Leon 

Mike Farrell 
 

Please note, any committee or workgroup that is 
doing any interested parties work or getting public 
input must hold open public meetings.  

PM = Public Member 



Rule Status Date Next step Complete By Notes
Submitted in 

RMS

SBEIS 

Check
CR-101 CR-102 CR-103

Opioid Prescribing - LTAC, 

SNF patient exemption

CR-103 filed 10/25/2022 Rule effective November 25, 2022 Complete Complete Complete

Collaborative Drug Therapy 

Agreements (CDTA)

CR-101 filed 7/22/2020 Workshops TBD Complete TBD TBD

SB 6551 - IMG licensing CR-103 filed 10/25/2022 Rule effective November 25, 2022 Complete Complete Complete

Medical Records Requesting 

rescinding of CR-

101 approval

11/18/2022 TBD TBD TBD

WMC Rules Progress Report Projected filing dates

Updated: 11/9/2022

































































































































































 
DOH 631 053      
Source: Washington State Department of Health    Page 1 of 6  

  Medical Marijuana (Cannabis) Authorization Guidelines  

   April 2020 

1.1 PURPOSE  
To improve patient safety and maintain the dignity of healthcare practitioners, the regulating boards 
and commissions adopted professional practice standards expected of authorizing healthcare 
practitioners who recommend medical marijuana under Washington State law.  

1.2 DEFINITIONS  
Authorization. A form developed by the Department of Health that is completed and signed by a 
healthcare practitioner and printed on tamper-resistant paper containing the RCW 69.51A.030 logo. An 
authorization is not a prescription as defined in RCW 69.50.101. A patient with a valid authorization is 
allowed to grow up to four plants within their domicile under RCW 69.51A.210.  

Authorizing healthcare practitioner. The following types of healthcare practitioners licensed in 
Washington State are allowed to authorize the use of marijuana to medical patients: 

• Medical doctor (MD) – licensed under chapter 18.71 RCW 
• Physician assistant (PA) – licensed under chapter 18.71A RCW 
• Osteopathic physician (DO) – licensed under chapter 18.57 RCW 
• Osteopathic physician assistant (OPA) – licensed under chapter 18.57A RCW 
• Naturopathic physician (ND) – licensed under chapter 18.36A RCW 
• Advanced registered nurse practitioner (ARNP)– licensed under chapter 18.79 RCW 
 
Certified Medical Marijuana Consultant. A person who has completed a 20-hour state-approved 
Medical Marijuana Consultant Certification training program and holds a valid medical marijuana 
consultant certificate issued by the Department of Health - WAC 246-72-010. A certified consultant 
works in a licensed marijuana retail store that has a medical endorsement. A certified consultant’s role is 
to assist a patient with registration into the medical marijuana authorization database, create and issue 
a recognition card to the patient and assist the patient with the selection of marijuana products that 
may benefit the patient’s medical condition - WAC 246-72-030. 

Designated provider. A person who is twenty-one years of age or older and is the parent or guardian of 
a qualifying patient who is under the age of eighteen; or has been designated by the qualifying patient 
to purchase, provide or grow marijuana for the patient and has an authorization from the patient’s 
healthcare practitioner. A designated provider can only serve one patient at any one time – RCW 
69.51A.010(4).  

Medical marijuana authorization database. A secure and confidential database administered by the 
Department of Health and used by medically-endorsed marijuana retail stores to register, issue and 
verify recognition cards to qualifying patients and their designated providers (if any); and, used by 
healthcare practitioners to access health care information on their patients for the purpose of providing 
medical and pharmaceutical care as established under RCW 69.51A.230.  

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.030
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.030
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.50.101
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.50.101
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.50.101
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.210
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.210
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=18.71
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=18.71A
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=18.57
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=18.57A
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=18.36A
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=18.79
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=246-72&full=true#246-72-010
http://apps.leg.wa.gov/WAC/default.aspx?cite=246-72&full=true#246-72-030
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.010
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.010
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.010
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.230
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.230


 
DOH 631 053      
Source: Washington State Department of Health    Page 2 of 6  

Medically-endorsed marijuana retail store. A marijuana retailer that has been issued a medical 
marijuana endorsement by the state liquor and cannabis board pursuant to RCW 69.50.375.  

Qualifying patient. A person who is a patient of a healthcare practitioner; has been diagnosed by that 
practitioner as having a terminal or debilitating medical condition defined under RCW 69.51A.010(24); is 
a resident of Washington; has been advised by that practitioner about the risks and benefits of the 
medical use of marijuana; has been advised by that practitioner that they may benefit from the medical 
use of marijuana; and has an authorization from his or her healthcare practitioner to use marijuana  for 
medical purposes – RCW 69.51A.010(17).  

Recognition card. A card issued to qualifying patients and designated providers by a marijuana retailer 
with a medical marijuana endorsement that has entered them into the medical marijuana authorization 
database – RCW 69.51A.010(20). With a recognition card a patient can purchase up to three times the 
recreational amount of product, is allowed to grow up to six plants (or up to 15 plants upon their 
practitioner’s additional plant recommendation), and can purchase sales tax free from a medically 
endorsed marijuana retail store – RCW 69.51A.210.  

Tamper-resistant paper. Paper that meets industry-recognized security features to copying, erasure or 
modification of information on the paper, and to prevent the use of counterfeit authorization – RCW 
69.51A.010(23).  

Terminal or debilitating medical condition. Means a condition severe enough to significantly interfere 
with the patient's activities of daily living and ability to function, which can be objectively assessed and 
evaluated and limited to the conditions outlined under RCW 69.51A.010(24).  

Compassionate Care Renewal. A renewal of an authorization by a health care practitioner through the 
use of telemedicine if the health care practitioner determines that requiring the qualifying patient to 
attend an in-person physical examination would likely result in severe hardship to the qualifying patient 
because of the qualifying patient's physical or emotional condition. A compassionate care renewal of a 
qualifying patient's registration and recognition card also allows the qualifying patient's designated 
provider to renew the qualifying patient's registration in the database and recognition card without the 
qualifying patient being physically present at a retailer and without a new photograph being taken per 
WAC 246-71-010(2). 

Telemedicine. Has the same meaning as the definition of that term adopted by the authorizing health 
care practitioner's disciplining authority, whether defined in rule or policy per WAC 246-71-010(15).  

1.3 HEALTHCARE PRACTITIONER STATUTORY LIMITATIONS  
The healthcare practitioner shall not (RCW 69.51A.030):  

a. Accept, solicit, or offer any form of pecuniary remuneration from or to a marijuana retailer, 
marijuana processor, or marijuana producer;  

b. Offer a discount or any other thing of value to a qualifying patient who is a customer of, or 
agrees to be a customer of, a particular marijuana retailer;  

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.50.375
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.50.375
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.010
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.010
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.010
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.010
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.010
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.010
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.010
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.210
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.210
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.010
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.010
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.010
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.010
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.010
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.010
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.010
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.030
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.030


 
DOH 631 053      
Source: Washington State Department of Health    Page 3 of 6  

c. Examine or offer to examine a patient for purposes of diagnosing a terminal or debilitating 
medical condition at a location where marijuana is produced, processed, or sold;  

d. Have a business or practice which consists primarily of authorizing the medical use of 
marijuana or authorize the medical use of marijuana at any location other than his or her 
practice's permanent physical location;  

e. Except as provided in RCW 69.51A.280, sell, or provide at no charge, marijuana 
concentrates, marijuana-infused products, or useable marijuana to a qualifying patient or 
designated provider; or  

f. Hold an economic interest in an enterprise that produces, processes, or sells marijuana if the 
health care professional authorizes the medical use of marijuana.  

1.4 AUTHORIZATION PRACTICE GUIDELINES  
A healthcare practitioner may provide valid documentation to authorize medical marijuana (cannabis) to 
a qualifying patient under Chapter 69.51A RCW under the following conditions:  

SECTION 1: PATIENT EVALUATION  
A healthcare practitioner should obtain, evaluate, and document the patient’s health history and 
physical examination in the health record prior to treating for a terminal or debilitating condition.  

a. The patient’s health history should include:  

i. Current and past treatments for the terminal or debilitating condition;  

ii. Comorbidities; and  

iii. Any history of substance misuse or abuse using a risk assessment tool.  

b. The healthcare practitioner should:  

i. Complete an initial physical examination as appropriate based on the patient’s 
condition and medical history; and  

ii. Check of the Prescription Drug Monitoring Program database for the patient’s 
receipt of controlled substances  

iii. Review the patient’s medications including indication(s), date, type, dosage, and 
quantity prescribed.  

iv. Provide the qualifying patient and their designated provider (if any) each with a 
medical marijuana authorization form printed on tamper-resistant paper containing 
the RCW 69.51A.030 logo as required under WAC 246-71-010.  

SECTION 2: TREATMENT PLAN  
A healthcare practitioner should document a written treatment plan that includes:  

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.280
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.280
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.280
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.280
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.280
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=246-71-010
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=246-71-010
https://apps.leg.wa.gov/wac/default.aspx?cite=246-71-010


 
DOH 631 053      
Source: Washington State Department of Health    Page 4 of 6  

a. Review of other measures attempted to treat the terminal or debilitating medical condition that 
do not involve the medical use of marijuana;  

b. Advice about other options for treating the terminal or debilitating medical condition;  

c. Determination that the patient may benefit from treatment of the terminal or debilitating 
medical condition with medical use of marijuana  

d. Advice about the potential risks of the medical use of marijuana to include: The variability of 
quality and concentration of medical marijuana;  

i. Adverse events, including falls or fractures;  

ii. The unknown short-term and long-term effects in minors, as more fully explained in 
Section 4, below; 

iii. Use of marijuana  during pregnancy or breast feeding; and, 

iv. The need to safeguard all marijuana and marijuana-infused products from children and 
pets or domestic animals. 

v. Additional diagnostic evaluations or other planned treatments;  

e. A specific duration for the medical marijuana  authorization for a period no longer than 12 
months for adults (age 18 and over) and 6 months for minors (under age 18); and, 

f. A specific ongoing treatment plan as medically appropriate.  

SECTION 3: ONGOING TREATMENT  
A healthcare practitioner should conduct ongoing treatment and assessment as medically appropriate to 
review the course of the patient’s treatment, to include:  

a. Any change in the medical condition;  

b. Any change in physical or psychosocial function;  

c. Any new information about the patient’s terminal or debilitating medical condition; and  

d. An authorization may be renewed upon completion of an in-person physical examination.   

e. Following an in-person physical examination, evaluate patient eligibility for a compassionate 
care renewal of their authorization per RCW 69.51A.030(2)(c)(iii).  

SECTION 4: TREATING MINOR PATIENTS OR PATIENTS WITHOUT DECISION MAKING CAPACITY  
The risks of marijuana use in minors are substantial, particularly given its well-documented adverse 
effects on the developing brain. 1 While research demonstrates that the use of marijuana can be helpful 
for adults with specific debilitating conditions, there are no published studies on the use of medical 

                                                            
1 https://pediatrics.aappublications.org/content/135/3/584   

https://pediatrics.aappublications.org/content/135/3/584
https://pediatrics.aappublications.org/content/135/3/584


 
DOH 631 053      
Source: Washington State Department of Health    Page 5 of 6  

marijuana for minors. A health care practitioner should strongly consider limiting the authorization of 
marijuana to minors in palliative pediatric care when short-term symptom relief outweighs long-term 
risks. The most common symptoms that may justify the use of medical marijuana for minors are pain, 
nausea, vomiting, seizures, and agitation. 2 

Under RCW 69.51A.220 and RCW 69.51A.230(4), a healthcare practitioner considering authorizing 
marijuana to a patient under the age of 18 or without decision making capacity must:  

a. Ensure the patient’s parent, guardian, or surrogate participates in the treatment and agrees 
to the medical use of marijuana;  

b. Evaluate and document history of substance misuse or abuse using a risk assessment tool; 3 

c. Consult with other healthcare practitioners involved in the patient’s treatment, as medically 
indicated and as agreed to by the patient’s parent, guardian, or surrogate, before 
authorization or reauthorization of the medical use of marijuana; and 

d. Include a follow-up discussion with the minor’s parent or patient surrogate to ensure the 
parent or patient surrogate continues to participate in the treatment; 

e. Ensure the patient’s parent, guardian, or surrogate acts as the designated provider; and 

f. Reexamine the minor at least once every six months or more frequently as medically 
indicated.  

  

Additional requirements to note when treating minor patients:  

a. Qualifying patients (adult or minor) can only have one designated provider under RCW 
69.51A.010. This can be challenging for minor patients who live in divorced families.  
a. School districts must permit a designated provider (parent/legal guardian) to administer 

marijuana-infused product to a minor qualifying patient (under age 18) in accordance with 
school policy at the request of a parent – RCW 69.51A.225 

b. The minor may not grow plants or purchase marijuana (cannabis) - RCW 69.51A.220.  

                                                            
2 The federal Food and Drug Administration (FDA) has approved medications related to marijuana that are 
available in pharmaceutical grade by prescription for rare conditions. One of the medications is approved for the 
treatment of seizures associated with Lennox-Gastut syndrome or Dravet syndrome in patients over two years of 

age. This medication is not considered medical marijuana and is not available at marijuana dispensaries. This 

medication is prescribed by subspecialists with expertise in these conditions.   
3 The use of a risk assessment tool is particularly important in the treatment of minors. The American Academy of 
Pediatrics developed a guide to help providers incorporate screening, brief intervention, and referral for the use of 
alcohol, tobacco, marijuana and other drugs among adolescent patients. 
https://pediatrics.aappublications.org/content/138/1/e20161210   

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.220
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.220
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.230
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.230
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.010
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.010
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A&full=true#69.51A.225
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.220
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.220
https://pediatrics.aappublications.org/content/138/1/e20161210
https://pediatrics.aappublications.org/content/138/1/e20161210


 
DOH 631 053      
Source: Washington State Department of Health    Page 6 of 6  

c. Both the minor and the minor's parent or guardian who is acting as the designated provider 
must be entered in the medical marijuana authorization database and hold a recognition 
card - RCW 69.51A.220.  

SECTION 5: MAINTENANCE OF HEALTH RECORDS  
A healthcare practitioner should maintain the patient’s health record in an accessible manner, readily 
available for review, and include:  

a. The diagnosis, treatment plan, and therapeutic objectives;  

b. Documentation of the presence of one or more recognized terminal or debilitating medical 
conditions identified in RCW 69.51A.010(24).  

c. Documentation of other measures attempted to treat the terminal or debilitating medical 
condition that do not involve the medical use of marijuana;  

d. A copy of the signed authorization form for both the patient and their designated provider 
(if any);  

e. Results of ongoing treatment; and  

f. The healthcare practitioner’s instructions to the patient.  

SECTION 6: CONTINUING EDUCATION  
A healthcare practitioner issuing authorizations or valid documentation for the medical use of marijuana 
on or after the effective date of these guidelines, should complete a minimum of three hours of 
continuing education related to medical marijuana.  

Such program should explain the proper use of marijuana (cannabis), including the pharmacology and 
effects of marijuana (e.g., distinction between cannabidiol (CBD) and tetrahydrocannabinol (THC); 
methods of administration; and potential side effects or risks).   

1.5 RESOURCES  
Washington State Department of Health Medical Marijuana Program  

https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.220
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.220
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.220
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.010
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.010
https://app.leg.wa.gov/RCW/default.aspx?cite=69.51A.010
https://www.doh.wa.gov/YouandYourFamily/Marijuana/MedicalMarijuana
https://www.doh.wa.gov/YouandYourFamily/Marijuana/MedicalMarijuana


PO Box 47866 | Olympia, Washington 98504-7866 | Medical.Commission@wmc.wa.gov | WMC.wa.gov 

Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 

 

Reentry to Practice for Suspended Licenses  
 

Introduction 

Purpose 

The Washington Medical Commission (Commission) provides this guidance to assist physicians and 

physician assistants (collectively “practitioners”) who have been out of practice a period of time due to 

a suspended license to demonstrate that they have the knowledge and skills to successfully reenter the 

practice of medicine. 

Background 

To protect public health, the Commission may find it necessary to suspend the license of a physician or 

physician assistant.  The suspension may be the result of unprofessional conduct or a physical or mental 

impairment.  At some point the practitioner may seek reinstatement of his or her license to practice.  In 

addition to fully satisfying the requirements of the disciplinary order, the practitioner may have to 

demonstrate that he or she has the knowledge and skills necessary to practice medicine with 

reasonable skill and safety.  Evidence shows that practitioners who have been out of practice for a 

period of time experience a decline in their medical knowledge and skills. 

Guidance 

The Commission may require a practitioner with a suspended license to demonstrate clinical 

competence by completing a reentry program prior to entering clinical practice.  When determining 

whether completion of a reentry program is required, the Commission will carefully review all the 

circumstances in each individual case. 

The length, activities and cost of reentry programs vary.  Reentry programs should be comprehensive 

but practical and flexible enough to address a variety of situations and specialties.  Reentry programs 

should be evidence-based and consistent with lifelong learning expectations for all practitioners.  At the 

very least, reentry programs should include reflective self-assessment, assessment of knowledge and 

skills, and performance in practice. 

Practitioners should be aware that some reentry programs will not admit practitioners with licenses 

under suspension or discipline.  A list of reentry programs can be found at the end of this guidance 

document under Resources. 

 

 Guidance Document  

mailto:Medical.Commission@wmc.wa.gov
http://www.wmc.wa.gov/


PO Box 47866 | Olympia, Washington 98504-7866 | Medical.Commission@wmc.wa.gov | WMC.wa.gov 

Page 2 of 2 

The Commission will have complete discretion to determine whether the practitioner has satisfactorily 

completed a reentry program and is competent to reenter clinical practice.  If the Commission permits a 

practitioner to reenter clinical practice, the Commission may impose additional restrictions or 

limitations on the practitioner’s practice to protect the public, including approval of practice monitors. 

The Commission recognizes that reentry programs may be expensive and that funding will likely be 

borne by the practitioner, presenting a barrier for some practitioners.  The Commission encourages 

academic medical centers to look for ways to cover some of the cost of reentry programs through 

research opportunities and generation of revenue.  Federal, state and local funding driven by physician 

shortages may become a funding source.  Potential employers, including community hospitals and large 

group practices, may be willing to offset individual physician reentry costs in exchange for later service. 

Practitioners with disabilities may consider the State of Washington Department of Social and Health 

Services, Division of Vocational Rehabilitation, as another potential source of funding. 

Resources 

American Medical Association Resources for Physicians Returning to Clinical Practice 

Drexel University College of Medicine Physician Refresher/Re-Entry Program 

Physician Retraining & Reentry at UC San Diego School of Medicine 

The Center for Personalized Education for Physicians (CPEP) Reentry to Clinical Practice Program 

CPEP Reentry to Clinical Practice 

KSTAR/Texas A&M Rural and Community Health Institute 

Lifeguard Re-Entry/Reinstatement at Foundation of the Pennsylvania Medical Society 

 

 

Number:  GUI2019-02 

Date of Adoption: April 12, 2019 

Reaffirmed / Updated: N/A 

Supersedes: Reentry to Practice for Suspended Licenses, MD2015-11, November 6, 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:Medical.Commission@wmc.wa.gov
http://www.wmc.wa.gov/
https://www.ama-assn.org/practice-management/career-development/resources-physicians-returning-clinical-practice
https://drexel.edu/medicine/academics/continuing-education/physician-refresher-re-entry-program/
https://prrprogram.com/
https://www.cpepdoc.org/portfolio-item/reentry-to-clinical-practice/
https://www.cpepdoc.org/portfolio-item/reentry-to-clinical-practice/
https://www.architexas.org/programs/kstar-physician/index.html
https://www.foundationpamedsoc.org/lifeguard/re-entry_re-instatement


PO Box 47866 | Olympia, Washington 98504-7866 | Medical.Commission@wmc.wa.gov | WMC.wa.gov 

Page 1 of 3 

 

 

 

 

Reentry to Practice  
 

Introduction 

Purpose 

To help ensure and advance patient safety and quality of care, the Washington Medical Commission 

(Commission) provides this guideline to assist physicians and physician assistants who take a 

temporary leave from practice to successfully reenter the safe practice of medicine 

Background 

A growing number of physicians and physician assistants (collectively “practitioners”) take a leave from 

the clinical practice of medicine at some point in their careers. The break from practice may be for any 

number of reasons, the most common being the birth of a child, child care, caring for an ill family 

member, personal health, military service, humanitarian leave, and a change in career path. This issue 

cuts across genders and specialties, but may affect women more than men. With the projected 

national physician shortage and considering the public’s investment in education and training 

physicians, practitioner reentry is becoming increasingly important to the health care delivery system.  

While reentry can be complex and challenging, there is evidence that practitioners who participate in a 

supportive structured educational program were generally successful in returning to practice.1  

Successful reentry to the safe practice of medicine requires the combined efforts of various 

stakeholders, such as regulators, specialty boards, hospitals, health plans, potential employers and 

preceptors. Recognizing that reentry to the practice of medicine is becoming an increasingly common 

part of a practitioner’s career, the Commission creates this guideline to assist practitioners to 

successfully navigate a return to the practice of medicine in the state of Washington. 

Definition(s) 

Practitioner reentry is defined as the return to clinical practice in an area or scope of practice for which 

one has been trained, certified or licensed after an extended period of time away from clinical practice. 

A practitioner returning to clinical practice in an area or scope of practice in which he or she has not 

been previously trained or certified or in which he or she has not had an extensive work history is not 

considered a reentry practitioner for the purpose of this guideline. 

 
 

1 Grace ES, Korinek EJ, Weitzel LB, Wentz DK. Physicians reentering clinical practice: Characteristics and clinical abilities. 

Journal of Continuing Education in the Health Professions. 2011;31(1):49-55. 

 Guideline Document  

mailto:Medical.Commission@wmc.wa.gov
http://www.wmc.wa.gov/


PO Box 47866 | Olympia, Washington 98504-7866 | Medical.Commission@wmc.wa.gov | WMC.wa.gov 

Page 2 of 3 

Guidanceeline 

Planning ahead before leaving clinical practice 

A practitioner considering taking a temporary leave from clinical practice should consider taking some 

or all of the following steps to help ease the transition back to the practice of medicine. 

• Maintain an active license; 

• Maintain board certification; 

• Keep up with continuing medical education activities; and 

• Take advantage of opportunities to stay involved in practice in a limited context. This can include 

part-time volunteer medical work during the leave from practice. 

Reentering Clinical Practice 

The Commission encourages practitioners who have been inactive for 24 months or more to complete 

a reentry program prior to entering clinical practice. Practitioners who are inactive for 12 to 24 months 

should consider completing an informal reentry program. 

Reentry Programs 

The length, activities and cost of reentry programs vary. Reentry programs should be comprehensive 

but practical and flexible enough to address a variety of situations and specialties. Reentry programs 

should be evidence-based and consistent with lifelong learning expectations for all practitioners. At the 

very least, reentry programs should include reflective self-assessment, as well as assessment of 

medical knowledge and skills and performance in practice by qualified preceptors. 

The University of Washington School of Medicine has developed a reentry program that meets these 

criteria. For a current list of reentry programs outside the state of Washington, the Commission directs 

physicians to a list of reentry programs maintained by The Physician Reentry into the Workforce 

Project. 

A list of reentry programs and resources can be found at the end of this guidance document. 

 

Practice Mentors 

If the reentry program calls for a practitioner to use a practice mentor upon a return to practice, the 

practitioner should ensure that the mentor is appropriately qualified and practices in the same clinical 

area as the practitioner seeking reentry. The practice mentor should have the capacity to serve as a 

practice mentor, including sufficient time for mentoring, and an active and unrestricted medical license 

under no active discipline. The practice mentor may require financial compensation or incentives for 

work associated with practice mentoring.  

Substance Use Disorders and Mental or Physical Impairment 

mailto:Medical.Commission@wmc.wa.gov
http://www.wmc.wa.gov/


PO Box 47866 | Olympia, Washington 98504-7866 | Medical.Commission@wmc.wa.gov | WMC.wa.gov 

Page 3 of 3 

A practitioner who has a mental or physical condition or a substance abuse disorder that currently 

affects or could affect the ability to practice with reasonable skill and safety should meet with the 

Washington Physicians Health Program and follow all recommendations before reentering the practice 

of medicine. 

Funding 

The Commission recognizes that reentry programs may be expensive and that funding will likely be 

borne by the practitioner, presenting a barrier for some practitioners. The Commission encourages 

academic medical centers to look for ways to cover some of the cost of reentry programs through 

research opportunities and generation of revenue through professional fee billing. Federal, state and 

local funding driven by physician shortages may become a funding source. Potential employers, 

including community hospitals and large group practices, may be willing to offset individual physician 

reentry costs in exchange for later service. Practitioners with disabilities may consider applying to the 

State of Washington Department of Social and Health Services, Division of Vocational Rehabilitation, 

as another potential source of funding. 

Resources 

American Medical Association Resources for Physicians Returning to Clinical Practice 

Drexel University College of Medicine Physician Refresher/Re-Entry Program 

Physician Retraining & Reentry at UC San Diego School of Medicine 

The Center for Personalized Education for Physicians (CPEP) Reentry to Clinical Practice Program 

CPEP Reentry to Clinical Practice 

KSTAR/Texas A&M Rural and Community Health Institute 

Lifeguard Re-Entry/Reinstatement at Foundation of the Pennsylvania Medical Society 

 

Number:  GUI2019-01 

Date of Adoption: May 17, 2019 

Reaffirmed / Updated: N/A 

Supersedes: Reentry to Practice, MD2015-10, November 6, 2015 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

mailto:Medical.Commission@wmc.wa.gov
http://www.wmc.wa.gov/
https://www.ama-assn.org/practice-management/career-development/resources-physicians-returning-clinical-practice
https://drexel.edu/medicine/academics/continuing-education/physician-refresher-re-entry-program/
https://prrprogram.com/
https://www.cpepdoc.org/portfolio-item/reentry-to-clinical-practice/
https://www.cpepdoc.org/portfolio-item/reentry-to-clinical-practice/
https://www.architexas.org/programs/kstar-physician/index.html
https://www.foundationpamedsoc.org/lifeguard/re-entry_re-instatement


 

 

 

In 2020, the Washington State Legislature chose to extend the responsibilities of the International 

Medical Graduate Assistance (IMG) Work Group with the passage of Senate Bill 6551; thus creating the 

IMG Implementation Workgroup (Workgroup). The bill also required that the Washington Medical 

Commission (WMC) to “adopt a clinical assessment to determine the readiness of international medical 

graduates to apply and serve in residency programs and adopt a grant award process for distributing 

funds” pursuant to appropriation by the legislature and donations 10 received from public and private 

entities. 

After meeting monthly throughout 2022, the workgroup has voted to propose the following Clinical 

Experience Assessment (CEA) meets the requirement set forth by the legislature and should adopted by 

the WMC.   

The CEA is intended for physician assessors working with IMGs to help further prepare them for 

residency and determine their readiness. It is not an element of application for residency nor is it a 

qualification for residency. The workgroup recommends the CEA be used to exhibit what level of 

“entrustment” might be appropriate for a graduating student entering residency and aid IMGs success  

in gaining a residency position. 

The CEA is to be used as a quarterly assessment or until a passing score on all competencies signifies 

readiness. The workgroup has also proposed that the WMC track progress over time for those licensees 

who made use of the CEA to see where additional education or targeted training be needed. And, they 

recommend the WMC create accountability standards for tracking outcomes from the use of the CEA as 

funding allows. 













Staff Reports – Page 1 of 10 

 

Staff Reports: November 18, 2022 
Melanie de Leon, Executive Director 

Travelling out of country?  If you are travelling out of the United States and plan to take your 

DOH-issued laptop with you or check email while you are gone, we need you to take several 

steps prior to your departure to make sure your VPN will connect while away. Four to six 

weeks prior to your departure (giving us more time is better), please contact Ken Imes 

ken.imes@wmc.wa.gov and tell him where you are travelling and your travel dates – this 

includes travel to Canada. Ken then must submit a ticket through our system to our IT shop. 

About a week prior to your departure, DOH IT is supposed to contact you to set up a time to 

remote into your laptop so they can add you to the appropriate security group to allow you 

VPN access while you are out of the country. If you have any questions on this process, 

please contact Ken. 

 

Micah Matthews, Deputy Executive Director 
Recurring: Please submit all Payroll and Travel Reimbursements within 30 days of the time 
worked or travelled to allow for processing. Request for reimbursement items older than 90 
days will be denied. Per Agency policy, requests submitted after the cutoff cannot be paid 
out. 

New Staff Member 
Please welcome Taylor Bacharach-Nixon to our staff. She joins us fresh from The Evergreen 
State College in an Administrative Assistant 3 role. She will split her time supporting Licensing 
and my role, especially with the legislative session coming in January. With this addition, my 
shop is fully staffed and hopefully stays that way. 

Recurring: Joint Operating Agreement (JOA) 
We submitted a proposed JOA to the Department to begin negotiations as of June 2, 2022. 
We have not received a formal counter proposal at this time, but our conceptual proposals 
have been largely accepted. We have held several meetings with DOH representatives, 
mostly relating to IT services and taking back public disclosure functions. The IT sections have 
largely been resolved. We will be meeting with the new leadership of Public Disclosure soon 
to go over specifics and answer outstanding questions on both sides. Based on several DOH 
policy changes on which we were not consulted, we submitted two amendments the week of 
November 1 clarifying WMC autonomy in finances and HR training.  

 

 

 

 

mailto:ken.imes@wmc.wa.gov


Staff Reports – Page 2 of 10 

 

 

Micah Matthews, Deputy Executive Director continued 

Audits 

WMC 
The WMC audit continues. All information requests have been satisfied by WMC staff and we 
are now waiting on analysis by the audit contractor. We hope to have preliminary results 
shared with us shortly after Thanksgiving. 

PMP 
The presentation to the J-LARC hearing was well attended by Governor’s office 
representatives ranging from DOH to the Office of the Chief Information Officer, WSMA, 
WSHA, and pain patient advocates. All uniformly opposed and condemned the SAO 
recommendation to gain access to PMP data for auditing purposes. The arguments ranged 
from out of scope of the PMP to SAO’s lack of expertise in medicine and pharmacology to the 
significant informational risk opening that database to non-essential individuals represents. 
The SAO representative seemed visibly surprised by the uniformity and force of the 
opposition. It remains to be seen what the legislators and the SAO will choose to do in 2023. 

Budget Update 
Our overall budget outlook can be described as on track and positive. We continue our 
spending at appropriated levels and our collections are within estimates. Projections for the 
budget at this time show us four percent underspent from our allotment. 

Budget Requests/Legislative Session 
The spending authority increase budget request approved by the WMC in July continues to 
move through the process. I presented last month to House, Senate, and OFM staff on our 
request and the response was positive. The package is currently under consideration with 
OFM and the Governor’s office. The next step is inclusion in the Governor’s budget. We 
should receive a notification in late December if that is the case. 

Per the presentation from the Legislative Team that you will receive, we are looking for 
Commissioners to participate in legislative work. Please see Dr. Chung, Micah, or Stephanie if 
you are interested. Some commitments are a weekly phone/zoom meeting and others are 
infrequent/ad-hoc. Participation can vary by the bills and topics are under consideration by 
the Legislature. 

 

Amelia Boyd, Program Manager 

Recruitment 

We are seeking the following specialties to serve as Pro Tem Members: 

• Urology 

• Radiology 

• Neurosurgery 

• General surgeon 

• Psychiatry  

If you know anyone who might be interested in serving as a Pro Tem, please have them email 
me directly at amelia.boyd@wmc.wa.gov.  

mailto:amelia.boyd@wmc.wa.gov


Staff Reports – Page 3 of 10 

 

 

 

Mike Hively, Director of Operations and Informatics  
Operations & Informatics processed four compulsory requests for records reviewing and 

redacting approximately 18,057 pages. Currently, there are two active requests the team is 

processing with a total page count of approximately 11,849. We anticipate completing the 

active requests before December 1, 2022.  

The Litigation Hold program is now 95% complete as we work to finalize our Excel tracking 

tool. The official procedure, process map, and notification letters have been reviewed by  

 

Amelia Boyd, Program Manager continued 
We began our recruitment for the vacancies we will have on July 1, 2023. We are recruiting 
for the following positions: 

• One physician representing Congressional District 2 – Dr. Lyle’s position – eligible for 
reappointment 

• One physician representing Congressional District 4 – Dr. Murphy’s position – eligible 
for reappointment 

• One physician representing Congressional District 10 – Dr. Wohns’ position – eligible 
for reappointment 

• One Physician-at-Large – Dr. Currie’s position – eligible for reappointment 

• Two Public Members 
o Michael Bailey – eligible for reappointment 
o Scott Rodgers – eligible for reappointment 

All the above Commissioners have been notified that their first term is ending June 30, 2023, 
they are eligible for reappointment, and they must submit a new application to be 
considered for reappointment. The application deadline is March 24, 2023. The recruitment 
notice is available on our website.  

The following positions expired as of June 30, 2022, and we are awaiting word from the 
Governor’s office staff on the new appointees:  

• Public Member – Toni Borlas – not eligible for reappointment 

• Public Member – Yanling Yu, PhD – not eligible for reappointment  

Rules 

Two rules were recently completed: 

• New Section, WAC 246-919-345, Limited Physician and Surgeon Clinical Experience 
License for International Medical Graduates. For more information, including the rule 
language, click here.  

• Opioid Prescribing Patient Exemptions. Exemptions section revised for both Physicians 
(WAC 246-919-851) and Physician Assistants (WAC 246-918-801). For more 
information, including the rule language, click here. 

Both rules will be effective November 25, 2022. 

https://wmc.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/Notice%20of%20Recruitment%202023.pdf
https://wmc.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/Notice%20of%20Recruitment%202023.pdf
https://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/WAMC/2022/11/02/file_attachments/2318579/2222038WMCInternationalMedicalGradCR103Pfinal.pdf
https://content.govdelivery.com/attachments/WAMC/2022/11/02/file_attachments/2318597/222039WMCOpioidExemptionsCR103final.pdf


Staff Reports – Page 4 of 10 

 

 

Mike Hively, Director of Operations and Informatics 
WMC staff and the AAG. The program will enter its testing phase upon receipt of a new 

Litigation Hold Notification.  

Unit Accomplishments Include: 

Digital Archiving 

• 274 Complaints closed BT – folder is current 

• 830 Active MD licensing applications 

• 1,657 Active PA licensing applications 

• Approximately 3,420 demographic census forms 

Data Requests/Changes 

• Approximately 1,346 open/closed inquiries (individual requests may contain requests) 

• Approximately 996 address changes 

Demographics 

• Entered approximately 3,420 census forms into the IRLS database and conducted 

quality checks 

• Conducts 1,277 secondary census contacts via email 

• Created MD & PA quarterly reports October 3rd and uploaded them to the WMC 

website 

o Updated Secondary Contact letter with new Commissioner signatures.  

• Provided MD & PA demographic data to WSMA as outlined in our Data Sharing 

Agreement 

• Assembled a list of neurosurgeons in Pierce County 

Ops & Info staff continue to convert paper-based records to digital format, submit 

destruction of paper-based records tickets via the Dept. of Health’s Service Central system 

and update ILRS to reflect the records’ current locations. Additionally, the Information Liaison 

Ken Imes assisted with facilitation and distribution of replacement I.T. equipment for staff, 

researched additional functionality within the Adobe-Sign platform and provide appropriate 

staff with instructions for the web-based information capture tool Snagit, audio editing 

software Goldwave, and Language Link Interpreter services. Lastly, the team continues to 

cross train one another in relation to digital archiving and processing compulsory records 

requests. 

 

Morgan Barrett, MD, Medical Consultant, Director of Compliance 
Nothing to report. 

 

George Heye, MD, Medical Consultant  

Nothing to report.  



Staff Reports – Page 5 of 10 

 

 

Rick Glein, Director of Legal Services 
Legal Staff Updates: 
Congratulations to newlyweds Ryan & Olivia Furbush! Ryan finished out a whirlwind summer 
by marrying Olivia on August 27, and then jetting off to an adventurous honeymoon in 
Mexico. Wishing Ryan and Olivia a full life of love and happiness!  
  
A warm welcome to our newest team member, Stormie Redden! Stormie joined us on 
September 16 as our Reconsiderations Program Coordinator. She joins us from HSQA/OILS 
where she was the Legal Assistant supervisor and has extensive experience working with 
professions, boards, and commissions. Welcome, Stormie!  
 
The Legal Unit is currently recruiting for a Staff Attorney (Hearings Examiner 3). The 
recruitment closes November 17. Please share this link with your network and contacts: 
Washington State Department of Health | Job Opportunities (governmentjobs.com) 
 
Summary Actions:  
In re Kristine S. Brecht, MD, Case No. M2022-564. In August 2021, Dr. Brecht entered into an 
Agreed Order with the Commission which, among other terms, restricted her from 
performing procedures that require sedation. Separately, in October of 2021, Dr. Brecht 
admitted to having operated an unlicensed ambulatory surgical facility (ASF) and agreed to 
cease operating an ASF until she and/or her PLLC received an ASF credential. Despite both 
agreements and restrictions, on at least ten occasions Dr. Brecht did not comply with 
Commission orders regarding surgical procedures that require sedation. Between February 
and April 2022, she carried out multiple documented procedures, several of which were 
complex including abdominoplasty and breast augmentation. The Statement of Charges 
(SOC) alleges Dr. Brecht is in violation of RCW 18.130.180 in two sections, including (9) which 
is “failure to comply with an order issued by a disciplining authority or a stipulation for 
informal disposition entered into with a disciplining authority.” A show cause hearing was 
convened on October 20, 2022. The resulting Order on Show Cause ordered that the 
summary suspension remain in effect pending a full adjudication of the allegations. A hearing 
on the merits of the SOC has not yet been scheduled. 
  
In re John C. Lucke, MD, Case No. M2021-908. On September 2, 2022, the Commission served 
a SOC and Ex Parte Order of Summary Suspension which suspended Dr. Lucke’s medical 
license based on allegations that Dr. Lucke entered into an Order with the Board of 
Registration in Medicine for the Commonwealth of Massachusetts in which Dr. Lucke 
voluntarily surrendered his medical license. The conduct underlying the Massachusetts Order 
was a restriction of Dr. Lucke’s Oregon medical license prohibiting him from performing 
cardiac procedures in the state of Oregon based on a finding that he performed below the 
standard of care. A hearing on the merits of the SOC has not yet been scheduled. 
  
Orders Resulting from SOCs: 
In re Bhanoo Sharma, MD, Case No. M2021-756. Agreed Order. On February 10, 2022, a 
Health Lawa Judge (HLJ), by delegation of the Commission, ordered that Dr. Sharma’s medical 
license be suspended pending further disciplinary proceedings. The SOC alleged that in 
January 2021 the Oregon Medical Board entered a Stipulated Order through which Dr.  

https://gcc02.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Flinkprotect.cudasvc.com%2Furl%3Fa%3Dhttps%253a%252f%252fwww.governmentjobs.com%252fcareers%252fwashington%252fdoh%252fjobs%252f3781239%252fhearings-examiner-3-he3-doh6921%26c%3DE%2C1%2CVHfadQhOrSoJAZcFqOMMcxyK6ckngGdNjF9aIzyIybti2YoaMyQjm5mHuGMSq6rw7WeherLQxjbbLBOkPocwiHp8NsOdJwSC_u00s9rZZMxZysD8LENhnjQwhl_9%26typo%3D1&data=05%7C01%7Cjennifer.batey%40wmc.wa.gov%7C49d48189b8f34888d98508dac0f0b932%7C11d0e217264e400a8ba057dcc127d72d%7C0%7C0%7C638034437374472620%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=50eCpmGRmx3u7ngvGXwbwpsoCwNjnSrrwMZE3C%2FUG8Q%3D&reserved=0
https://lnks.gd/l/eyJhbGciOiJIUzI1NiJ9..3ShDrQ-ChJ2CYOaHMH36kXbRt5e_p04wEFgLq71NSVQ/s/946842011/br/144412599787-l


Staff Reports – Page 6 of 10 

 

 

Rick Glein, Director of Legal Services continued 
Sharma surrendered his Oregon license while under investigation. The underlying conduct in 
the Stipulated Order included negligence in Dr. Sharma’s medical care to four patients and 
inadequate and dangerous responses to adverse events. On August 25, 2022, the 
Commission approved an Agreed Order in which Dr. Sharma agreed to permanently 
surrender his Washington medical license.  
  
In re Richard Heitsch, MD, Case No. M2021-545. Final Order.* On August 11, 2021, the 
Commission filed a SOC alleging Dr. Heitsch and the Oregon Medical Board entered into a 
Stipulated Order ordering Dr. Heitsch to complete a course on medical documentation and 
prohibiting Dr. Heitsch, or any person employed by him, from treating any patient with 
hyperbaric oxygen therapy or performing hyperbaric oxygen therapy for any patient. In 
March 2022, the HLJ granted the Commission’s Motion for Partial Summary Judgment, 
finding that there is no genuine dispute as to any material fact and limited the issue at 
hearing to sanctions only. A Final Order was issued on September 9, 2022, which prohibits Dr. 
Heitsch from treating any patient with hyperbaric oxygen therapy or performing hyperbaric 
oxygen therapy for any patient. Additionally, Dr. Heitsch shall obtain continuing education in 
the area of recordkeeping, remain in full compliance with the Oregon Order, pay a fine of 
$5,000, and personally appear before the Commission.  
  
In re Thomas J. Osten, MD, Case No. M2021-652. Final Order (Failure to Appear).* In January 
2022, the Commission issued a SOC alleging Dr. Osten did not obtain a patient’s permission 
to perform an exam or inform her what he was doing before lifting her shirt. Additionally, the 
SOC alleged Dr. Osten told the patient an inappropriate joke and made a comment which 
made the patient uncomfortable. Under a different case number, M2018-68, a Final Order 
was issued to Dr. Osten on August 4, 2021, which was based on similar allegations with three 
different female patients. In his Answer to the SOC and at an initial scheduling call, Dr. Osten 
indicated he wanted an in-person hearing. The HLJ advised that hearings were being 
conducted virtually due to the COVID-19 pandemic. At a prehearing conference on July 11, 
the HLJ confirmed the hearing scheduled on July 22 would be held virtually. Dr. Osten 
objected to the virtual hearing, and the HLJ advised that a default could be issued if Dr. Osten 
did not participate. Dr. Osten hung up his phone after being told multiple time that the 
hearing would be conducted virtually. The Commission requested an Order of Default. On 
July 15, the HLJ entered an Order of Default finding sufficient grounds exist to take 
disciplinary action against Dr. Osten’s medical license and ordered that his license be 
indefinitely suspended.** Dr. Osten filed a Motion for Reconsideration which the HLJ denied 
on October 4, 2022.  
  
In re Robert Norton, MD, Case No. M2020-708. Final Order (Failure to Respond).* In June 
2021, the Commission served a Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and Order for 
Investigative Mental and Physical Examination (Order) on Dr. Norton which required Dr. 
Norton to make an appointment for an evaluation within seven days of receiving the Order. 
Dr. Norton did not make an appointment for the required evaluation. In June 2022, the 
Commission filed a SOC alleging Dr. Norton failed to respond to an order issued by the 
Commission. Dr. Norton did not file a response to the SOC within the time allowed. The 
matter came before a HLJ in September 2022. The HLJ concluded sufficient grounds existed  



Staff Reports – Page 7 of 10 

 

 

Rick Glein, Director of Legal Services continued 

to take disciplinary action against Dr. Norton’s license and ordered that his medical license be 
indefinitely suspended.** 
 
In re James B. Grierson, MD, Case No. M2022-238. Agreed Order. This matter was referred by 
the Commission to the Secretary of Health as a sexual misconduct case that did not involve 
clinical expertise or standard of care issues. (See RCW 18.130.062.) In June 2022, a SOC was 
issued against Dr. Grierson which alleged he became sexually intimate with a patient, 
including an instance of sexual intercourse in the exam room after the patient’s scheduled 
appointment. Additionally, the SOC alleged that Dr. Grierson asked the patient to consider 
recanting the allegation of sexual intercourse in the exam room or on clinic property. Dr. 
Grierson waived the opportunity for a hearing on the merits of the SOC. On September 15, 
2022, a HLJ accepted an Agreed Order which suspended Dr. Grierson’s medical license for at 
least three years. Prior to reinstatement, Dr. Grierson shall pay a fine of $2,000 and undergo 
a mental health evaluation with a focus on sexual misconduct. If and when Dr. Grierson 
petitions for reinstatement, the Commission may impose such additional requirements as 
may be necessary to protect the public.  
  
In re Scott C. Miller, PA, Case No. M2021-272. Final Order.* On October 6, 2022, the Medical 
Commission issued a final order in matter of Scott C. Miller. The final order indefinitely 
suspends Mr. Miller’s credential to practice as a physician assistant. The final order was the 
result of a SOC issued in October 2021 and a five-day hearing in August 2022. Mr. Miller was 
found to have committed unprofessional conduct in violation of RCW 18.130.180(1), (2), (4), 
(6), (13), and (22). A separate allegation that Mr. Miller violated RCW 18.130.180(16) was 
dismissed by the Commission. The terms of the final order indefinitely suspend Mr. Miller’s 
credential to practice. Mr. Miller may petition the Commission for reinstatement of his 
credential after successfully completing an ethics course and undergoing a multidisciplinary 
assessment for fitness to practice. Mr. Miller has ten days in which to file a petition for 
reconsideration. Additionally, Mr. Miller may file a petition for judicial review of the 
Commission’s decision with a superior court within thirty days.  
  
In re Christopher Greenman, MD, Case No. M2021-909. Agreed Order. In February 2022, the 
Commission issued a SOC which alleged unprofessional conduct surrounding percutaneous 
coronary intervention procedures Dr. Greenman performed on five patients. On October 6, 
2022, the Commission approved an Agreed Order which requires Dr. Greenman to undergo a 
competency assessment of his interventional cardiology clinical skills and documentation, 
pay a fine of $10,000, and appear before the Commission. Upon completion of the 
competency assessment, the Agreed Order will be modified to incorporate the 
recommendations, including any practice restrictions, conditions on practice, or rehabilitative 
training.  
  
*Either party may file a petition for reconsideration within ten days of service of the order. 
RCW 34.05.461(3); 34.05.470. A petition for judicial review must be filed and served within 
30 days after service of the order. If a petition for reconsideration is filed, the 30-day period 
does not start until the petition is resolved. RCW 34.05.542; 34.05.470(3). 
 



Staff Reports – Page 8 of 10 

 

 

Rick Glein, Director of Legal Services continued 

**A person whose license has been suspended under chapter 18.130 RCW may petition the 
disciplining authority for reinstatement. RCW 18.130.150. 
  
Virtual Hearing: 
In re Dara Parvin, MD, Case No. 2021-376.  In March 2022, the Commission filed a SOC 
alleging Dr. Parvin entered into a Settlement Agreement with the Iowa Board of Medicine 
which placed her license to practice in the state of Iowa on probation for a period of two 
years upon her return to practice in that state. The underlying conduct alleged in the Iowa 
Settlement Agreement included making inappropriate advances on and sending suggestive 
messages to subordinate co-workers and a colleague. In September 2022, the HLJ granted 
the Commission’s Motion for Partial Summary Judgment, finding that there is no genuine 
dispute as to any material fact and limited the issue at hearing to sanctions only. The 
Commission held a virtual hearing on October 21, 2022. A Final Order is expected to be 
issued by the end of January 2023.***  
  
***The HLJ has 90 days after the conclusion of the hearing to issue a decision. RCW 
34.05.461.  
  
Item of Interest: 
The Federation of State Medical Boards (FSMB) held its Attorney Board Workshop November 
3-4. Our Legal Unit was well-represented, with most of our staff attorneys attending this 
event which is designed specifically for attorneys and legal staff of state medical and 
osteopathic medical boards and brings together experts in the field of medical licensure and 
discipline to discuss the current legal issues and trends facing state medical boards. This year 
Mike Farrell and Trisha were invited to moderate and present, respectively, on Prosecuting 
COVID-19 Related Cases. Rick was able to share information about the Commission’s SMART 
procedure and trauma-informed training for sexual misconduct cases. 

 

Mike Farrell, Policy Development Manager 
Nothing to report that hasn’t been reported elsewhere. 

 

Freda Pace, Director of Investigations 
❖ Recurring: Reviewing Commissioner Member Notification (RCM Notification) process: 

As a reminder, the RCM Notification process allows you (the RCM) and the assigned 
investigator an opportunity to collaborate in building the foundation for a thorough 
investigation. Please make sure to monitor your WMC email inbox regularly and 
respond timely to request for specific feedback which will help with a speedy and 
thorough investigation. 

 

❖ Case Manager Stats: Last quarter (July, August, September), CMT reviewed 394 new 

cases. CMT authorized 30.46% of cases for investigation and closed 69.54%. CMT 

reviewed 22 RFRs and authorized 22.73% for investigation.  



Staff Reports – Page 9 of 10 

 

 

Freda Pace, Director of Investigations 

❖ CMT Sign-up for 2022 
Our CMT sign up slots are full for the year 2022! However, 2023 is right around the 
corner and there are vacancies waiting for your name. We appreciate your continued 
participation in this very important process. We could not be able to do this work 
without you and your support!  
 

If you sign up for a CMT slot and you have a last-minute scheduling conflict, at your earliest 
opportunity, please promptly notify Chris Waterman (chris.waterman@wmc.wa.gov). This 
courtesy cancellation notice will allow Chris the opportunity to fill any last-minute vacancy 
needs. 

 

Jimi Bush, Director of Quality and Engagement 

Outreach 

If you have a topic suggestion for our informal series “coffee with the commission” - please 

let Jimi know. We are looking to put together a coffee with the commission that discusses 

the discrimination policy. This CwC will be led by Mahi Zeru. If you are interested in 

participating, please let Jimi know and she will reach out to coordinate a time.  

We are also working on having our Lunch and Learns on a monthly basis – not just during 

commission meetings and having them accredited for Category 1 CME.  

Performance 

The FY2022 Performance report is available online. Please let Jimi know if you have any 

questions or concerns.  

 

Marisa Courtney, Licensing Manager 
Total licenses issued from 08/17/2022-11/08/2022= 909 

Credential Type Total Workflow 
Count 

Physician And Surgeon Clinical Experience License 1 

Physician And Surgeon Fellowship License 7 

Physician And Surgeon Institution License 2 

Credential Type Total Workflow 
Count 

Physician And Surgeon License 387 

  

mailto:chris.waterman@wmc.wa.gov
mailto:jimi.bush@wmc.wa.gov
mailto:jimi.bush@wmc.wa.gov
https://wmc.wa.gov/sites/default/files/public/FY22%20Performance%20Report.pdf


Staff Reports – Page 10 of 10 

 

 

Marisa Courtney, Licensing Manager continued 

Credential Type Total Workflow 
Count 

Physician and Surgeon License Interstate Medical Licensure Compact 242 

Physician And Surgeon Residency License 17 

Physician And Surgeon Teaching Research License 6 

Physician And Surgeon Temporary Permit 26 

Physician Assistant Interim Permit 32 

Physician Assistant License 198 

Physician Assistant Temporary Permit 8 

Totals: 909 

Information on Renewals: August Renewals- 72.21% online renewals 

Credential Type # of Online Renewals # of Manual Renewals Total # of Renewals 

IMLC 0 45 45 

MD 1017 372 1389 

MDFE 0 1 1 

MDIN 1 0 1 

MDRE 20 6 26 

MDTR 1 4 5 

PA 198 48 246 

  72.21% 27.79% 100.00% 

Information on Renewals: September Renewals- 73.42% online renewals 

Credential Type # of Online Renewals # of Manual Renewals Total # of Renewals 

IMLC 0 52 52 

MD 930 304 1234 

MDTR 4 2 6 

PA 160 38 198 

  73.42% 26.58% 100.00% 

Information on Renewals: October Renewals- 75.82% online renewals 

Credential Type # of Online Renewals # of Manual Renewals Total # of Renewals 

IMLC 0 59 59 

MD 991 269 1260 

MDRE 1 0 1 

MDTR 1 2 3 

PA 142 32 174 

  75.82% 24.18% 100.00% 

 



 

360-236-2750   |   PO Box 47866   |   Olympia, Washington 98504-7866   |   Medical.Commission@wmc.wa.gov 
WMC.wa.gov 

Panel A 
Personal Appearance Agenda 

Friday, November 18th, 2022   

Panel 
Members: 

Sarah Lyle, MD, Panel Chair Mabel Bongmba, 
MD 

Jimmy Chung, MD Arlene Dorrough, PA-C 

Anjali D’Souza, MD Harlan Gallinger, 
MD 

Elisha Mvundura, 
MD 

Robert Pullen, Public Member 

Scott Rodgers, Public 
Member 

Richard Wohns, MD Yanling Yu, PhD, 
Public Member 

 

Janet Barrall, MD, Pro-Tem Alan Brown, MD, 
Pro-Tem 

Mary Curtis, MD, 
Pro-Tem 

Charlie Browne, MD 

Robert Golden, MD Charlotte Lewis, 
MD, Pro-Tem 

  
 

   

Compliance 
Officer: Anthony Elders                                            

9:45 a.m. Mark A. Maiocco, MD 
Attorney: Pro Se 

M2016-575 (2016-2565) 
RCM: Scott Rodgers, Public Member 
SA:     Kyle Karinen 

10:30 a.m. Dennis J. Kim, MD 
Attorney: Pro Se 

M2019-707 (2019-4455) 
RCM: Anjali D’Souza, MD 
SA:     Kyle Karinen 

11:15 a.m. William M. Hall, MD 
Attorney: Jessica Creager 

M2020-686 (2020-5577 et al.) 
RCMS: Charlotte Lewis, MD, Scott Rodgers 
SA:       Colleen Balatbat 

To request this document in another format, call 1-800-525-0127. Deaf or hard of hearing customers, please call 711 (Washington 
Relay) or email civil.rights@doh.wa.gov. 

 

mailto:civil.rights@doh.wa.gov


 

360-236-2750   |   PO Box 47866   |   Olympia, Washington 98504-7866   |   Medical.Commission@wmc.wa.gov 
WMC.wa.gov 

Panel B 
Personal Appearance Agenda 

Friday, November 18th, 2022 

Panel 
Members: 

Chair: Terry Murphy, 
MD 

Michael Bailey, Public 
Member 

Christine Blake, 
Public Member 

Toni Borlas, Public Member 

Po-Shen Chang, MD Diana Currie, MD Karen Domino, 
MD 

April Jaeger, MD 

Ed Lopez, PA-C Claire Trescott, MD   

Theresa Schimmels, 
PA-C, Pro-Tem 

Daniel Flugstad, MD, Pro- 
Tem 

Alden Roberts, 
MD, Pro-Tem 

John Maldon, Public Member, 
Pro-Tem 

    
 

   

Compliance 
Officer: Mike Kramer 

9:45 a.m. Robert J. Stewart, MD 
Attorney: James B. King 

M2021-284 (2020-13440) 
RCM: Daniel Flugstad, MD 
SA:     Trisha Wolf 

10:30 a.m. Brenda Roberts, MD 
Attorney: Pro Se 

M2019-73 (2017-8553) 
RCM: John Maldon, Public Member 
SA:     Rick Glein 

11:15 a.m. Celestia S. Higano, MD 
Attorney: John H. Rosen 

M2021-48 (2020-13527 et al.) 
RCM: April Jaeger, MD 
SA:     Kyle Karinen 

To request this document in another format, call 1-800-525-0127. Deaf or hard of hearing customers, please call 711 (Washington 
Relay) or email civil.rights@doh.wa.gov. 

 

mailto:civil.rights@doh.wa.gov

	Cover
	Meeting Schedules
	2022
	2023
	2024

	Hearing Schedule
	Agenda
	Draft August 26, 2022 Business Meeting Minutes
	Committee/Workgroups
	Reports
	List

	Rules
	Progress Report
	Petitions
	Bertsch Petition 1
	Bertsch Petition 2
	Bertsch Petition 3


	Policy Committee
	DOH Document: Medical Marijuana Authorization Guidelines
	Guidance Document: Reentry to Practice for Suspended Licenses
	Guidance Document: Reentry to Practice
	Proposed Policy: Clinical Experience Assessment 
	Draft Assessment


	Staff Reports
	Personal Appearances
	Panel A
	Panel B




